around the stem of the font. On the top of the font are two iron hoops, originally to help lock the font cover so that the Holy Water, left there from one Easter till the next, could not be used for doubtful purposes, i.e. witchcraft!

Nearby is an iron-bound chest, for the safe storage of documents. and the door into the tower is also covered with strips of iron for strength. The screen dividing the nave from the chancel obviously came from another church as it does not fit the space, nor is it complete and the order of the Apostles has been shuffled around. It shows eight of the twelve Apostles, each holding a scroll with a part of the text of the Creed. This was a recognised way of portraying the Creed and each Apostle held his own part of the text.  All the figures have had their faces, hands and feet carefully removed! In the north screen there are St Jude (boat - should be No. 11), St Matthias (should be no. 12 at the end of the creed, ending with "Amen") St Andrew (X, No.2), St Peter (key, No. 1); the south side shows St John (chalice scratched out, No. 4), St James the Great (scallop shell on his purse, No 3), [NB Sts. John and James have exchanged their rightful texts]; St Thomas (spear, Y 5) and St James the Less (fuller's club, No. 5).  A faded panel showing St Philip (basket of loaves, No. 7) is mounted on the wall near the east end of the north aisle. Sts. Bartholomew, Matthew and Simon are missing. 
The -former 17C altar rails, unusually tall with sturdy balusters, are now at the front of the pews in the aisles. In the chancel the choir stalls incorporate some old material, including some old bench ends with poppy heads and a lion on an arm rest. Either side of the altar are large Victorian Decalogue Boards proclaiming the Ten Commandments and there are modern Communion rails at a more user-friendly height than the 17C rails. Within the sanctuary are four large and two small ledger stones for members of the le Neve family, the ones for the females correctly showing their arms in a lozenge shape.
This leaflet was compiled for Church Tours in 2005 by 'Lyn Stilgoe.
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RINGLAND ST PETER

This church stands prominently on an elevated site at the west end of the village, being basically an early 14C building, although the clerestory was added c1460. The clerestory has seven closely placed two-light Perpendicular windows, each with a brick superarch, facing north and seven facing south.

The south side was obviously the side built to impress as the flints along the clerestory wall are carefully selected cut black ones. On the north side the fabric is the more usual flint nibble. There was also a three-light window in the east gable of the nave, but this is now blocked.
The chancel windows have 14C tracery of multi-cusped quatrefoils, although there has been a certain amount of restoration work, particularly in the east window. The east windows of the aisles are also the result of restoration. The aisle windows have cusped Y tracery, except for the quatrefoil one adjacent to the north door, which could have been one of the original 14C clerestory windows re-set there.
The tower appears to be from the late 13C with a later stepped battlemented parapet with flushwork patterns and two shields each side. This parapet would have had pinnacles at the four comers, as there are still the plinths to support them and also one is shown in the Ladbrooke drawing of the 1820s. There is a lancet west window, a narrow opening
facing south at the next stage and then Y traceried belfry openings. The four stage buttresses have cut flint decoration in their faces and run up to the level of the top of the belfry openings. There are five bells, the oldest being 1752.

[image: image1.png]The south porch is faced with cut white flints and there are two finely carved angels in the spandrels above the entrance, each holding a key and a scroll. Each angel has one wing folded and one wing outstretched to fill the triangular space! Around the porch the base course has a series of shields set within trefoil headed flushwork.

[image: image2.png]Inside the church the nave roof, dated c.1460, is spectacular! It is similar to the one in the Norwich City church of St Peter Mancroft. Its hammer beams are enclosed by coving of ribbed fan vaulting (Fig. 1) springing from the wall posts and vertical boards standing on this coving. These boards, reaching up to the roof, are covered with, a frieze of quatrefoils and have demi angels on clouds, holding shields. or with their hands together in prayer, along the base. One angel on the north side holds a bishop's mitre. The walls posts are supported by stone angels.                                   Fig. 1

The principal roof beams have floral bosses at the intersections.

Just below the roof in the north clerestory windows much Norwich glass survives, again dating from about 1460. At either end the windows have plain glass, but from the west:

2. There are three kneeling donors, with roundels of IHC (from the Greek word for .Jesus) and a pot of lilies (west) and MR for Maria Regina (east).

3. Roundels of St Mark's and St John's symbols above an Annunciation with the Blessed Virgin Mary and Gabriel

4. Holy Trinity - the Crucifixion (Son) in the arms of God the Father (without His head) and the dove (in God's beard, denoting the Holy Spirit). 
The Blessed Virgin Mary and Child.

Above in the tracery are MR, an angel, a prophet, and the evangelists' symbols.

5. Two roundels of St-Luke's emblem and MR, and John the Baptist, clothed with a camel's skin.

6. Man and wife donors, and roundels of MR and IHC.

In the, south-east window of the south aisle is an important roundel showing a centaur (Fig. 2).  This is a man with the body of a horse, who is playing a fiddle and with his hunting dog running between the horse's legs. It follows the style of the Ormesby Psalter c.1320, and was probably made about 50 years  later.  There are also the remains of 15C canopy glass in the west and south-west windows of the south aisle.

Fig.2             

Above the two doors are two hatchments for the le Neve family, with their shield,[image: image3.png] silver with five fleurs-de-lis on a black cross. To the north it is impaled with Blackborne (wavy band between three stars) and is for Francis le Neve d.1708 who married Anne Blackborne from Wymondham, who died in 1721. To the south there is le Neve/Mingay for Peter le Neve d.1766, having married Anna Elizabeth (Mingay - three leopard faces) d. 1781. Both boards have skulls and crossbones on their frames.
The 14C font (Fig. 3) at the west end of the nave has a rose carved on its north and south panels, and an angel holding a shield facing east and west. The alternate panels are SE the winged man for St Matthew, SW the winged bull for St Luke, NW the eagle for St John and NE the winged lion for St. Mark. Below the bowl are angel heads, 
then a band of fleurons, with four seated lions

Fig. 3
